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19 April 2016  

 
Mr Ray Wyatt 
Secretary, South Australian/Northern Territory Branch 
Transport Workers’ Union of Australia 
 

Sent via email: ray.wyatt@twusant.com.au 

 

Dear Mr Wyatt 

Re: Lodgement of financial statements and accounts – Transport Workers’ Union of 
Australia, South Australian/Northern Territory Branch - for year ended 31 December 2015 
(FR2015/386) 
 
I refer to the financial report of the South Australian/Northern Territory Branch of the Transport 
Workers’ Union of Australia.  The report was lodged with the Fair Work Commission on 6 April 
2016.  
 
The documents have been filed.  The financial report was filed based on a primary review.  This 
involved confirming whether the financial reporting timelines required under s.253, s.265, s.266 
and s.268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (RO Act) have been satisfied, all 
documents required under s.268 of the RO Act were lodged and that various disclosure 
requirements under the Australian Accounting Standards, RO Act and Reporting Guidelines have 
been complied with.  A primary review does not examine all disclosure requirements.  You are 
not required to take further action in relation to the report lodged but I make the following 
comments to assist you when you next prepare a report. 
 
Documents must be lodged with the FWC within 14 days of presentation meeting 
 
Section 268 of the RO Act requires the full report and the designated officer’s certificate to be 
lodged with the FWC within 14 days of the meeting at which the full report is presented for the 
purposes of section 266.  The Designated Officer’s Certificate indicated that this meeting 
occurred on 21 March 2016.1  If this is correct the full report should have been lodged with the 
FWC by 4 April 2016, or alternatively, the Branch should have applied to the General Manager 
for an extension of time in accordance with section 268 to lodge the full report on the later day.  
 
Please note that if in future financial years the Branch anticipates it will not be able to lodge on 
time, a written request for an extension of time, signed by a relevant officer, including any reason 
for the delay, must be made prior to the expiry of the 14th day following the relevant meeting. 
 

 

                                                

1
 I note 21 March 2016 was also the date the resolution referred to in the committee of Management statement was 

passed and the auditor’s report and operating report were signed.  



Reporting Requirements 
 
On the FWC website a number of factsheets in relation to the financial reporting process and 
associated timelines are available.  The most recent copy of the Reporting Guidelines and a 
model set of financial statements can also be found.  The FWC recommends reporting units use 
this model as it will assist in ensuring compliance with the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) 
Act 2009, the s.253 Reporting Guidelines and the Australian Accounting Standards.  Access to 
this information may be obtained via this link. 
 
Should you wish to discuss this letter, or if you require further information on the financial 
reporting requirements of the Act, I may be contacted on (02) 6746 3283 or by email at 
stephen.kellett@fwc.gov.au. 

Yours sincerely 

 

  

Stephen Kellett 

Senior Adviser  

Regulatory Compliance Branch 

 

 



TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF AUSTRALIA (SA/NT) BRANCH 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended 31st December 2015 



Fair Work Commission 
Tribunal Services and Organisations 
GPO Box 1994 
Melbourne VIC 3001 

Via email: orqs@fwc.qov.au 

Designated Officer's Certificate [FR2015/386] 

s.268 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 
Certificate for period ended 31 December 2015 

21 March 2016 

I Raymond John Wyatt being the Branch Secretary of the Transport Workers' Union of Australia 
SA/NT Branch certify: 

• that the documents lodged herewith are copies of the full report for the Transport Workers ' 
Union of Australia SA/NT Branch for the period ended 31 December 2015 referred to in 
s.268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009; and 

• that the full report was presented to a Committee of Management Meeting on 21 Marcil 
2016. The full report is also available on the inte rnet for download at www.twusant.com.au 
and is available in hard copy from 25 Chief St Brompton SA 5007; and 

• that the full report was presented to a Committee of Management Meeting on 21 Marcil 
2016 in accordance with s.266(3) of the Fair Work {Registered Organisations) Act 2009 and 
Rule f the Reporting Unit's Rules. 

Signature: .:-:-: .. ~. (:;; .. :;:;:. ~;:;::;::,.., 

Raymond John Wyatt 
Transport Workers' Union of Australia SA/NT Branch Secretary 

Dated: 21 March 2016 

•·-···-~·'"'""r""·--.,.~ ...... --•·•·--·r' •- ··- -·- .....-.~,...... • •-- ~--....-~ .. ·--------- .. - .-, • ---~·~ - .... , ........ ....,:-';"~'"' ·-·· "!"""'"·T~O"--:'JI 

Two Transport Workers' Union of Australia SAINT Branch Branch Secretary Ray Wyatt .. \ 
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Transport Workers' Union of Australia SA/NT Branch 

Branch Committee of Management 

OPERATING REPORT 

For the period ended 31 December 2015 

The Branch Committee of Management presents its report on the Reporting Unit for the financial 

year ended 31 December 2015. 

Principal Activities 

The principal activities of the Branch during the reporting period were to provide industrial and 

organising services to the members consistent with the objects of the Branch and particularly the 

object of protecting and improving the interest of the members. 

The Branches principal activities resulted in maintaining and improving the wages and conditions of 

employment of the membership, particularly for those members in collective enterprise agreements 

negotiated by the Branch. 

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Branch's principal activities during the 

reporting period. 

Significant changes in financial affairs 

There were no significant changes in the financial affairs of the Branch during the reporting period. 

Right of members to resign 

Members may resign from the Branch in accordance with rule 11, which reads as follows; 

11. Resignation from membership 

(1) A Member may resign from Membership by notice in writing addressed and delivered to 

the Branch Secretary of the Branch in which the Member is enrolled. 

(2 ) A notice of resignat ion from Membersh ip t akes effect; 

(a) if the Member has ceased to be El igible: 

(i) on the day on which the notice is received by the Union; 

(ii) on the day specified in the notice; 
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(b) in any other case: 

(i) at the end of 2 weeks after the notice is received by the Branch Secretary; 

or 

(ii) on the day specified in the notice; 

whichever is later. 

(3) Any Dues payable but not paid by a former Member, in relation to a period before the 

Member's resignation from the Union took effect, may be sued for and recovered in 

accordance with rule 81 as a debt due to the Union. 

(4) A notice delivered in accordance with sub-rule (1) is deemed to have been received by 

the Union when it was delivered. 

(5) A notice of resignation that has been received by the Union is not invalid only because it 

was not addressed and delivered in accordance with sub-rule (1). 

(6) A resignation from Membership is valid, even if it is not effected in accordance with this 

rule, if the Member is informed in writing by the Union that the resignation has been 

accepted. 

Transport Workers' Union of Australia SA/NT Branch 

Officers & employees who are superannuation fund trustee(s) (include position details) or 

director of a company that is a superannuation fund trustee 

The following officers of the Branch held preserved positions in the following entities: 

Raymond Wyatt is an alternate director of TWUSUPER. 

Number of members 

The number of persons who, at the end of the reporting period, were recorded on the Registrar of 
Members of the Branch was 4678. 

Number of employees 
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The number of persons who were, at the end of the reporting period, employees of the Branch was 
11. 

Names of Committee of Management members and period positions held during the financial 

year 

The persons who held office as members of the committee of Management of the Branch during the 

reporting period are; 

• Bryan Mcintosh (President), 

• Michael Vogt (Vice-President) 

• Ray Wyatt (Secretary/Treasurer) 

• I an Smith (Assistant Secretary) 

• lan Gonsalves (Branch Trustee) 

• Edward Lawrie (Branch Trustee) 

• Matthew Spring (Committee Member) 

• Peter Brammy (Committee Member) 

• Romana Hutchinson (Committee Member) 

• Scott Concannon (Committee Member) 

• Daniel McNicol (Committee Member) 

• Jeremy Czoloszynski (Committee M 

• Frank Kesak (Committee Member 

Name and title of designated officer: Ray Wyatt- TWU SAINT Branch Secretary 

Dated: Tuesday: 21 March 2016 
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~ 
EdwardsMarshall 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF TRANSPORT WORKERS UNION OF AUSTRALIA SA/ NT BRANCH 

We have audited the accompanyi g financial report of Transport Workers Union of Australia SA I NT Branch, 
which comprises the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2015, the Statement of Profit or Loss 
and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement for the year then 
ended, Notes to the Financial Statements and the Committee of Management's Statement. 

Committee of Management Responsibility for the Financial Report 

The Committee of Management are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financ ia l 
report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the requirements of the Reporting Guidelines 
and Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 and for such internal control as 

they determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our aud it 
in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Aud iting Standards require that we comply with 
re levant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial report. The procedures selected depend on the aud itor's judgement, includ ing the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial report whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Branch's preparat ion and fair presentation 
of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropria te in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Branch's internal control. An aud it also 

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by the Committee of Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial report. 

We be lieve that the aud it evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Matters Relating to the Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Report 

This audit report relates to the financial repo rt of the Tra nsport Workers Union of Austral ia SA I NT Branch for 
the year ended 31 December 2015, includ ing its presentat ion on the Transport Workers Union web site . The 
National Committee of Management and the National Secretary ofTransport Workers Union of Australia are 
responsible for the integrity of the Transport Workers Union web site . This audit report refers only to the 

statements named above for the SA I NT Branch. It does not provide an opinion on any other informat ion that 
may be hyper linked to or from these statements . If users of this report are concerned with the inherent risks 
arising f rom electronic data communications they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial 
repo rts to confirm the information included in the audited financial report presented on the web site. 

~ 
Celebrating bO years 

1953-2013 
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~ 
EdwardsMarshall 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF TRANSPORT WORKERS UNION OF AUSTRALIA SA/ NT BRANCH (CONT) 

Independence 

In conduct ing our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Account ing 
Professional and Ethical Standards. 

Audit Declarations 

We have concluded that management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of the 
financial statements is appropriate. 

The auditor is an approved aud itor in accordance with the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009, is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia and holds a 
current Public Practice Certificate. 

Audit Opinion 

In our opinion the financial report present fairly, in all material respects, the fina ncial position of Transport 
Workers Union of Australia SA I NT Branch as at 31 December 2015 and of its financia l performance and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the requirements 
of the Reporting Guidelines and Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

Edwards Marshall 
Cha rtered Accountants 

Stephen Camilleri 
Partner 

Adelaide 
South Australia 

Dated • .<: 1./ 
I' (r./c 
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Transport Workers' Union of Australia SAINT Branch 

Branch Committee of Management 

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT 

For the period ended 31 December 2015 

On 21 March 2016 the Branch Committee of Management of the. Transport Workers Union 
of Australia SNNT Branch passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose 
financial report (GPRF) for the year ended 31 December 2015: 

The Branch Committee of Management declares that in its opinion: 

(a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting 
Standards; 

(b) the financial statements and notes comply with the reporting guidelines of the 
General Manager; 

(c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial 
performance, financial position and cash flows of the reporting unit for the 
financial year to which they relate; 

(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay 
its debts as and when they become due and payable; 

(e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that 
year: 

(i) meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with 
the rules of the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; 
and 

(ii) the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in 
accordance with the rules of the organisation including the rules of a 
branch concerned; and 

(iii) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained 
in accordance with the RO Act; and 

(iv) where the organisation consists of two or more reporting units, the 
financial records of the reporting unit have been kept, as far as 
practicable, in a consistent manner with each of the other reporting units 
of the organisation; and 

(v) where information has been sought in any request by a member of the 
reporting unit or General Manager duly made under section 272 of the RO 
Act has been provided to the member or General Manager; and 

(vi) where any order for inspection of financial records has been made by the 
Fair Work Commission under section 273 of the RO Act, there has been 
compliance. 

(f) No revenue has been derived from undertaking recovery of wages activity during 
the reporting period. 

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management. 
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··· ' · ······· ········· ·· ····· ·· ···· ···· ···· ·· ··· ···· ····· ··· 

Name and title of designated officer: Ray Wyatt- TWU SA/NT Branch Secretary 

Dated: Tuesday: 21 March 2016 
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TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF AUSTRALIA 
SA I NT BRANCH 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

2015 

Notes $ 
Revenue 

Membership subscriptions 1,903,701 

Capitation fees 3A 
Levies 3B 
Interest 3C 37,962 

Rental revenue 3D 49,316 

Other revenue 3E 755,327 

Other Income 2,746,306 

Grants and/or donations 3F 
Total other income 
Total income 2,746,306 

Expenses 
Employee expenses 4A 1,241,537 

Capitation fees 4B 348,711 

Affiliation fees 4C 34,311 

Administration expenses 40 475,242 
Grants or donations 4E 1,318 

Depreciation and amortisation 4F 66,036 
Legal costs 4G 67,658 

Auditors fees 13 16,310 

Other expenses 4H 
Total expenses 2,251,123 

Profit (loss) for the year 495,183 

Other comprehensive income 
Items that will be subsequently 
reclassified to profit or loss 

Gain (loss) on revaluation of other 
(130,416) 

investments 

Total comprehensive income for the 
364,767 

year 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes. 

2014 
$ 

1,960,850 

50,992 
37,372 

289,287 
2,338,501 

2,338,501 

1 ,278,152 
355,041 

32,851 
504,579 

29,936 
65,476 

158,185 
16,421 

2,440,641 

(102, 140) 

149,575 

47,435 
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TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF AUSTRALIA 
SA I NT BRANCH 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

Notes 
ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 5A 
Trade and other receivables 58 
Other current assets 5C 

Total current assets 

Non-Current Assets 
Land and buildings 6A 
Plant and equipment 68 
Other investments 6C 

Total non-current assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 

Trade payables 7A 
Other payables 78 
Employee provisions 8A 

Total current liabilities 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Employee provisions SA 

Total non-current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 

EQUITY 
Building Revaluation Reserve 9A 
Financial Asset Reserve 98 
Retained earnings 

Total equity 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes. 

2015 2014 
$ $ 

1,632,428 550,728 
113,737 117,654 

11,388 7,745 
1,757,553 676,128 

1,269,021 1,292,974 
94,874 123,728 

3,992,147 4,678,264 
5,356,042 6,094;966 

7,113,595 6,771 ,094 

121,337 157,846 
22,678 21,993 

181 '122 175,348 
325,137 261,770 

7,785 
7,785 

332,922 355,188 

6,780,673 6,415,906 

562,538 562,538 
(767,570) (637, 154) 
6,985,705 5,853,368 
6,780,673 6,415,906 
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TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF AUSTRALIA 
SA I NT BRANCH 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

Building Financial 
Revaluation Asset 

Reserve Reserve 
Notes $ $ 

Balance as at 1 January 2014 562,538 
Adjustment for errors 98 (786,729) 
Profit (loss) for the year 
Other comprehensive income for the 

149,575 
year 
Closing balance as at 31 

562,538 (637,154) December 2014 

Profit (loss) for the year 
Other comprehensive income for the 

(130,416) 
year 
Closing balance as at 31 

562,538 (767,570) December 2015 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes. 

Retained Total equity 
earnings 

$ $ 
5,805,933 6,368,471 

786,729 
(102, 140) (102,140) 

149,575 

6,490,522 6,415,906 

495,183 495,183 

(130,416) 

6,985,705 6,780,673 
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TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION .OF AUSTRALIA 
SA I NT BRANCH 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

Notes 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received 

Receipts from other reporting units 108 
Interest 
Other 

Cash used 
Employees 
Suppliers 
Payment to other reporting units 108 

Net cash from {used by) operating 
10A 

activities 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received 

Proceeds from sale of plant and 
equipment 
Proceeds from realisation of other 
investments 

Cash used 
Purchase of plant and equipment 

Net cash from {used by) investing 
activities 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Net cash from (used by) financing 
activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash held 

Cash & cash equivalents at the 
beginning of the reporting period 
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of 

5A 
the reporting period 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes. 

2015 2014 
$ $ 

39,921 149,679 
37,962 50,993 

2,673,024 2,043,799 

1,227,979 1,254,940 
623,331 697,897 
360,370 331,239 

539,227 (39,605) 

41,603 

555,702 287,776 

13,229 103,782 

542,473 225,597 

1,081,700 185,992 

550,728 364,736 

1,632,428 550,728 
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TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF AUSTRALIA 
SA I NT BRANCH 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

Index to the Notes of the Financial Statements 

Note 1 

Note 2 

Note 3 

Note 4 

Note 5 

Note 6 

Note 7 

Note 8 

Note 9 

Note 10 

Note 11 

Note 12 

Note 13 

Note 14 

Note 15 

Note 16 

Note 17 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

Events after the reporting period 

Income 

Expenses 

Current assets 

Non-current assets 

Current payables 

Provisions 

Equity 

Cash flow 

Contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments 

Related party disclosures 

Remuneration of auditors 

Financial instruments 

Fair value measurements 

Recovery of Wages Activity 

Section 272 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 
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TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF AUSTRALIA 
SA I NT BRANCH 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

Note 1 Summary of significant accounting policies 

1.1 Basis of preparation of the financial statements 

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements and have been 
prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued 
by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that apply for the reporting period 
and the Fair Work (Registered Organisation) Act 2009. For the purpose of preparing the 
general purpose financial statements, the Transport Workers' Union of SA/NT Branch is a 
not-for-profit entity. 

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance with 
the historical cost, except for certain assets and liabilities measured at fair value, as 
explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair 
values of the consideration given in exchange for assets. Except where stated, no 
allowance is made for the effect of changing prices on the results or the financial position. 
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars. 

1.2 Comparative amounts 

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to 
conform to changes in presentation for the current financial year. 

1.3 Significant accounting judgements and estimates 

The following accounting assumptions or estimates have been identified that have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next reporting period. 

• Valuation of land and buildings 
• Valuation of other investments -Available for sale financial assets 

1.4 New Australian Accounting Standards 

Adoption of New Australian Accounting Standard requirements 

No accounting standard has been adopted earlier than the application date stated in the 
standard. 

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year. 

Future Australian Accounting Standards Requirements 

There are no new standards, amendments to standards or interpretations that were issued 
prior to the sign-off date and are applicable to the future reporting period that are expected 
to have a future financial impact on Transport Workers' Union of SA/NT Branch. 
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TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF AUSTRALIA 
SA I NT BRANCH 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

1.5 Revenue 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 

Revenue from subscriptions is accounted for on an accrual basis and is recorded as 
revenue in the year to which it relates. Receivables are recognised at the nominal amounts 
due less any impairment allowance made when collectability of the debt is no longer 
probable. Collectability is reviewed at the end of the year. 

Donation income is recognised when it is received. 

Interest revenue is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. 

Rental revenue from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term 
of the relevant lease. 

1.6 Government grants 

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the 
Transport Workers' Union of SA/NT Branch will comply with the conditions attaching to 
them and that the grants will be received. 

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods 
in which the Transport Workers' Union of SAINT Branch recognises as expenses the 
related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government 
grants whose primary condition is that the Transport Workers' Union of SAINT Branch 
should purchase, construct otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as 
deferred revenue in the statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on 
a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets. 

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already 
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Transport Workers' 
Union of SAINT Branch with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the 
period in which they become receivable. 

1.7 Gains 

Sale of assets 

Gains and losses from disposal of assets are recognised when control of the asset has · 
passed to the buyer. 

1.8 Capitation fees and levies 

Capitation fees and levies are recognised on an accrual basis and recorded as a 
revenue and/or expense in the year to which it relates. 
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TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF AUSTRALIA 
SA I NT BRANCH 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

1.9 Employee benefits 

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and 
salaries, annual leave, long service leave and termination benefits when it is probable that 
settlement will be required and they are capable of being measured reliably. 

Liabilities for short-term employee benefits and termination benefits which are expected to 
be settled within twelve months of the end of reporting period are measured at their 
nominal amounts. The nominal amount is calculated with regard to the rates expected to 
be paid on settlement of the liability. 

Other long-term employee benefits which are expected to be settled beyond twelve months 
are measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by 
the reporting unit in respect of services provided by employees up to reporting date. 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense 
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions. 

Provision is made for separation and redundancy benefit payments. Reporting Unit 
recognises a provision for termination as part of a broader restructuring when it has 
developed a detailed formal plan for the terminations and has informed those employees 
affected that it will carry out the terminations. 

1.10 Cash 

Cash is recognised at its nominal amount. Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on 
hand, deposits held at call with bank, other short-term highly liquid investments with 
original maturity of 3 months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts 
are shown within short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the consolidated statement 
of financial position. 

1.11 Financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Branch becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial 
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

16 



TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF AUSTRALIA 
SA I NT BRANCH 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

1.12 Financial assets 

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets at 
fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial 
assets and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose 
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way 
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised upon trade date 
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that 
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in 
the marketplace. 

Fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets are classified as at fair value through profit or loss when the financial 
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at fair value through profit or loss. 

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if: 
• it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or 
• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the 

reporting unit manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit­
taking; or 

• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument. 

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at fair 
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition if: 
• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition 

inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or 
• the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, 

which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance 
with the reporting units documented risk management or investment strategy, and 
information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or 

• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and AASB 
139 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' permits the entire 
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at fair value through profit or 
loss. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any gains 
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss 
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial 
asset and is included in the 'other gains and losses' line item in the statement of 
comprehensive income. 

Held-to-maturity investments 

Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that the 
reporting unit has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held­
to-maturity investments. Held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method less any impairment. 
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A vai/able-for-sa/e 

Investments classified as available-for-sale and are stated at fair value. Gains and losses 
arising from changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in the financial asset revaluation reserve, with the exception of impairment 
losses, interest calculated using the effective interest method, and foreign exchange gains 
and losses on monetary assets, which are recognised in profit or loss. Where the 
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss 
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or 
loss. 

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when 
the reporting unit right to receive the dividends is established. The fair value of available­
for-sale monetary assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign 
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. The foreign 
exchange gains and losses that are recognised in profit or loss are determined based on 

. the amortised cost of the monetary asset. Other foreign exchange gains and losses are 
recognised in other comprehensive income. 

Loan and receivables 

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments 
that are not quoted in an active market are classified as 'loans and receivables'. Loans 
and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less 
impairment. Interest is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short­
term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial. 

Effective interest method 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt 
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period . The effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected 
life of the financial asset, or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount 
on initial recognition. 

Income is recognised on an effective interest rate basis except for debt instruments other 
than those financial assets that are recognised at fair value through profit or loss. 

Impairment of financial assets 

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for 
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be 
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that 
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows 
of the investment have been affected. 
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For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are 
assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a 
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could 
include the reporting units past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the 
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 60 days, as 
well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with 
default on receivables. 

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss 
recognised is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest 
rate. 

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the 
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated 
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. 
Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods. 

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for 
all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is 
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered 
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of 
amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the 
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. 

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains 
or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit 
or loss in the period . 

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of 
the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss 
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment 
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would 
have been had the impairment not been recognised. 

In respect of available-for-sale equity securities, impairment losses previously recognised 
in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value 
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. In respect of available­
for-sale debt securities, impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit or loss 
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event 
occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss. 
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Derecognition of financial assets 

The reporting unit derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the 
cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. The difference 
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and 
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss. 

1.13 Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities 'at fair value through profit or 
loss' or other financial liabilities. Financial liabilities are recognised and derecognised upon 
'trade date'. 

Fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit or loss when the financial 
liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at fair value through profit or loss. 

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: 
• it has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or 
• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the 

reporting unit manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit­
taking; or 

• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument. 

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at 
fair value through profit or Joss upon initial recognition if: 
• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition 

inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or 
• the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or 

both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in 
accordance with the reporting units documented risk management or investment 
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or 

• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and AASB 
139 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' permits the entire 
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at fair value through profit or 
loss. 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any gains 
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss 
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is 
included in the 'other gains and losses' line item in the statement of comprehensive 
income. 
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Other financial liabilities 

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings and trade and other payables, are initially 
measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. 

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. 

Derecognition of financial liabilities 

The reporting unit derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the reporting 
units obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the 
carrying amounts of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and 
payable is recognised in profit or loss. 

1.14 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are not recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Position but are reported in the relevant notes. They may arise from uncertainty 
as to the existence of a liability or asset or represent an existing liability or asset in respect 
of which the amount cannot be reliably measured. Contingent assets are disclosed when 
settlement is probable but not virtually certain, and contingent liabilities are disclosed when 
settlement is greater than remote. · 

1.15 Land, Buildings, Plant and Equipment 

Asset Recognition Threshold 

Purchases of land, buildings, plant and equipment are recognised initially at cost in the 
Statement of Financial Position. The initial cost of an asset includes an estimate of the 
cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. 

Revaluations-Land and Buildings 

Following initial recognition at cost, land and buildings are carried at fair value less 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations 
are performed with sufficient frequency such that the carrying amount of assets do not 
differ materially from those that would be determined using fair values as at the reporting 
date. 

Revaluation adjustments are made on a class basis. Any revaluation increment is credited 
to equity under the heading of asset revaluation reserve except to the extent that it 
reversed a previous revaluation decrement of the same asset class that was previously 
recognised in the surplus/deficit. Revaluation decrements for a class of assets are 
recognised directly in the profit or loss except to the extent that they reverse a previous 
revaluation increment for that class. Any accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation 
date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the asset is restated 
to the revalued amount. 
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Depreciation 

Depreciable property, plant and equipment assets are written-off to their estimated residual 
values over their estimated useful life using, in all cases, the straight line method of 
depreciation. Depreciation rates (useful fives), residual values and methods are reviewed 
at each reporting date and necessary adjustments are recognised in the current, or current 
and future reporting periods, as appropriate. 

Depreciation rates applying to each class of depreciable asset are based on the following 
useful lives: 

Land & buildings 
Plant and equipment 

Derecognition 

2.50% 
4% to 33.3% 

An item of land, buildings, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no 
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference between the safes proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognised in the profit and loss. 

1.16 Impairment for non-financial assets 

All assets are assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting period to the extent 
that there is an impairment trigger. Where indications of impairment exist, the asset's 
recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment adjustment made if the asset's 
recoverable amount is Jess than its carrying amount. 

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal 
and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to 
be derived from the asset. Where the future economic benefit of an asset is not primarily 
dependent on the asset's ability to generate future cash flows, and the asset would be 
replaced if the [reporting unit] were deprived of the asset, its value in use is taken to be its 
depreciated replacement cost. 

22 



TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF AUSTRALIA 
SA I NT BRANCH 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

1.17 Taxation 

Transport Workers' Union of SA/NT Branch is exempt from income tax under section 50.1 
of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 however still has obligation for Fringe Benefits 
Tax (FBT) and the Goods and Services Tax (GST). 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of GST except: 
• where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation 

Office; and 
• for receivables and payables. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included 
as part of receivables or payables. 

Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis. The GST component 
of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or 
payable to, the Australian Taxation Office is classified within operating cash flows. 

1.18 Fair value measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair 
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or 
transfer the liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset 
or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Branch. The 
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants 
act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Branch uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on 
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

• Levei1-Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities 

• Level 2-Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

• Level 3-Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring 
basis, the [reporting unit] determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in 
the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as land and buildings 
and investment properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, 
independence and whether professional standards are maintained. For the purpose of fair 
value disclosures, the [reporting unit] has determined classes of assets and liabilities on 
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the 
fair value hierarchy. 

Note 2 Events after the reporting period 

There were no events that occurred after 31 December 2015, and/or prior to the signing of the 
financial statements, that would affect the ongoing structure and financial activities of Transport 
Worker's Union of Australia SAINT Branch. 
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Note 3 Income 

Note 3A: Capitation fees 

Capitation fees 

Total capitation fees 

Note 38: Levies 

Levies 

Total levies 

Note 3C: Interest 

Deposits 

Total interest 

Note 30: Rental revenue 

Properties 
Other 
Total rental revenue 

Note 3E: Other Revenue 

Other 
Total other revenue 

Note 3F: Grants or donations 

Grants 
Donations 
Total grants or donations 

2015 2014 
$ $ 

37,962 50,992 
37,962 50,992 

49,316 37,372 

49,316 37,372 

755,327 289,287 
755,327 289,287 
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Note 4 Expenses 

Note 4A: Employee expenses 

Holders of office: 
Wages and salaries 
Superannuation 
Leave and other entitlements 
Separation and redundancies 
Other employee expenses 

Employee expenses holders of office 

Employees other than office holders: 
Wages and salaries 
Superannuation 
Leave and other entitlements 
Separation and redundancies 
Other employee expenses 

Employee expenses employees other than office holders 
Total employee expenses 

Note 4B: Capitation fees 

Transport Workers Union of Australia National Office 
Total capitation fees 

Note 4C: Affiliation fees 

Australian Labor Party - SA/NT Branches 

Total affiliation fees/subscriptions 

2015 2014 
$ $ 

309,826 
60,416 
36,019 

406,261 

726,751 
103,513 

5,012 

3011190 
58,378 
17,808 

377,376 

783,741 
111,631 

5,404 

835,276 900,776 

1,241 ,537 1,278,152 

348,711 355,041 

348,711 355,041 

34,311 32,851 

34,311 32,851 
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Note 40: Administration expenses 

Consideration to employers for payroll deductions 
Compulsory levies: 
-Transport Workers Union of Australia National Office IR Levy 
Fees/allowances - meeting and conferences 
Conference and meeting expenses 
Property expenses 
Office expenses 
Information communications technology 
Other 

Total administration expense 

Note 4E: Grants or donations 

Grants 
Donations 

Total paid that were $1,000 or less 
Total paid that exceeded $1,000 · 

Total grants or donations 

Note 4F: Depreciation and amortisation 

Depreciation 
Land & buildings 
Property, plant and equipment 

Total depreciation 

Total depreciation and amortisation 

Note 4G: Legal costs 

Litigation 
Other legal matters 

Total legal costs 

Note 4H: Other expenses 

Penalties - via RO Act or RO Regulations 
Total other expenses 

2015 
$ 

1,525 

18,836 
6,030 

48,632 
34,500 

162,744 
11,985 

190,990 

475,242 

1,318 

1,318 

23,953 
42,083 
66,036 
66,036 

67,658 

67,658 

2014 

$ 

1,562 

8,732 
75,525 
42,610 

159,165 
29,989 

186,996 

504,579 

1,436 
28,500 
29,936 

23,967 
41,509 
65,476 
65,476 

158,185 

158,185 
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2015 2014 

Note 5 Current Assets 

Note SA: Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash at bank 
Cash on hand 
Short term deposits 
Other 
Total cash and cash equivalents 

Note 58: Trade and Other Receivables 

Receivables from other reporting unit 
Transport Workers Union of Australia 

Total receivables from other reporting unit 

Less provision for doubtful debts 

Total provision for doubtful debts 
Receivable from other reporting unit {net) 

Other receivables: 
GST receivable from the Australian 
Taxation Office 
Other trade receivables 

Total other receivables 
Total trade and other receivables (net) 

Note 5C: Other Current Assets 

Prepaid Expenses 
Movie Tickets for resale on hand 
Total other current assets 

$ $ 

1,631,578 
850 

1,632,428 

101 

101 

101 

5,604 

108,032 
113,636 

113,737 

9,902 
1,486 

11 ,388 

549,878 
850 

550,728 

13,503 

104,151 
117,654 
117,654 

7,588 
157 

7,745 

28 



TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF AUSTRALIA 
SA I NT BRANCH 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

2015 
$ 

Note 6 Non-current Assets 

Note 6A: Land and buildings 

Land and buildings: 
fair value 1,494,475 
accumulated depreciation 225,454 

Total land and buildings 1,269,021 

Reconciliation of the Opening and Closing Balances of Land and Buildings 

2014 
$ 

1,494,475 
201,501 

1,292,974 

Net book value 1 January 
Additions by purchase 
Depreciation expense 

1,292,974 1,341,179 

23,953 23,967 
Net book value 31 December 1,269,021 1,292,974 

Fair value of the properties was determined by using market comparable method. This means 
that valuations performed by the valuer are based on active market prices, significantly adjusted 
for difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific property as at the date of 
revaluation in 2009. The properties' fair values were based on valuations performed by an 
accredited independent valuer. 

Note 68: Plant and equipment 

Plant and equipment: 
at cost 
accumulated depreciation 

Total plant and equipment 

302,647 
207,773 

94,874 

Reconciliation of the Opening and Closing Balances of Plant and Equipment 

Net book value 1 January 
Additions by purchase 
Depreciation expense 

Net book value 31 December 

Note 6C: Other Investments 

Deposits 
Available for sale financial assets - managed funds 
Total other investments 

123,728 
13,229 
42,083 
94,874 

3,992,147 
3,992,147 

328,761 
205,033 
123,728 

103,059 
103,781 
41,509 

123,728 

1,011,306 
3,666,958 
4,678,264 
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Note 7 Current Liabilities 

Note 7 A: Trade payables 

Trade creditors and accruals 
Operating lease rentals 

Subtotal trade creditors 

Payables to other reporting units 
Transport Worker Union of Australia 

Subtotal payables to other reporting units 

2015 2014 

$ $ 

86,823 157,846 

86,823 157,846 

34,514 

34,514 

Total trade payables 121 ,337 157,846 

Settlement is usually made within 30 days. 

Note 7B: Other payables 

Consideration to employers for payroll deductions 
Legal costs 
Prepayments received/unearned revenue 
Other 

Total other payables 

Total other payables are expected to be settled in: 
No more than 12 months 
More than 12 months 

Total other payables expected to be settled 

20,259 
2,419 

22,678 

22,678 

22,678 

20,082 
1,911 

21,993 

21,993 

21,993 
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Note 8 Provisions 

Note SA: Employee Provisions 

Office Holders: 
Annual leave 
Long service leave 
Separations and redundancies 
Other 

Employee provisions-office holders 
Employees other than office holders: 

Annual leave 
Long service leave 
Separations and redundancies 
Other 

Employee provisions-employees other than office holders 
Total employee provisions 

Current 
Non-Current 
Total employee provisions 

Note 9 Equity 

Note 9A: Property Revaluation Reserve 

Balance as at start of year 
Transferred to reserve 
Transferred out of reserve 

Total property revaluation reserve 

Note 98: Financial Asset Revaluation Reserve 

Balance as at start of year 
Adjustment for errors (i) 
Transferred to reserve 
Transferred out of reserve 

Total financial asset revaluation reserve 

2015 2014 
$ $ 

38,041 
74,924 

112,965 

44,595 
31,347 

75,942 

188,907 

181 '122 
7,785 

188,907 

562,538 

562,538 

(637,154) 

47,502 
77,928 

125,430 

34,429 
15,490 

49,919 
175,348 

175,348 

175,348 

562,538 

562,538 

(786,729) 
(130,416) 149,575 

(767,570) (637, 154) 

(i): The financial asset reserve was not recognised in previous financial years on available 
for sale financial assets and revaluations were taken directly into retained earnings. 
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2015 
$ 

Note 10 Cash Flow 

Note 1 OA: Cash Flow Reconciliation 

Reconciliation of profit/(loss) to net cash from operating activities: 
Profitl(loss) for the year 495,183 

Adjustments for non-cash items 
Depreciation/amortisation 66,036 

Changes in assets/liabilities 
(lncrease)/decrease in trade and other receivables 3,917 
(lncrease)/decrease in prepayments (3,643) 
Increase/( decrease) in trade payables (36,509) 
lncrease/(decrease) in other payables 684 
lncrease/(decrease) in employee provisions 13,559 
Net cash from (used by} operating activities 539,228 

Note 108: Cash flow information 

Cash inflows 
-Transport Workers Union of Australia National Office 39,921 

Total cash inflows 39,921 

Cash outflows 
-Transport Workers Union of Australia National Office 360,370 
Total cash outflows 360 ,370 

Note 11 Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments 

2014 
$ 

102,140 

65,476 

(23,713) 
36,998 
30,870 

(70,309) 
23,212 

(39,605) 

149,679 
149,679 

331,239 
331 ,239 

There are no contingent liabilities, contingent assets or commitments as at 31 December 2015. 
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2015 2014 
$ $ 

Note 12 Related Party Disclosures 

Note 12A: Related Party Transactions for the Reporting Period 

Transactions with the Transport Workers Union of Australia National Office are on normal 
commercial and conditions no more favourable than to other parties. 
Expenses incurred from the National Office are disclosed in Notes 4B and 40. 
Cash inflows and outflows with the National Office are disclosed in Note 10 (b). 
Balances with Transport Workers Union of Australia National Office are disclosed in Note 5B 
and Note ?A 

Note 128: Key Management Personnel Remuneration for the Reporting Period 

Short-term employee benefits 
Salary (including annual leave taken) 
Annual leave accrued 
Performance bonus 

Total short-term employee benefits 

Post-employment benefits: 
Superannuation 

Total post-employment benefits 

Other long-term benefits: 
Long-service leave accrued 

Total other long-term benefits 

Termination benefits 

Total 

395,062 
27,185 

422,247 

76,268 

8,834 

8,834 

507,349 

383,086 
26,696 

409,782 

73,765 

8,672 

8,672 

492,219 

There are no other transactions with key management personnel or their close family mmbers. 

Note 13 Remuneration of Auditors 

Value of the services provided 
Financial statement audit services 
Other services 

Total remuneration of auditors 

11,700 
4,610 

16,310 

10,000 
6,421 

16,421 
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TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF AUSTRALIA 
SA I NT BRANCH 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

2015 2014 

Note 14 Financial Instruments 

Note 14A: Categories of Financial Instruments 

Financial Assets 

Fair value through profit or loss 

Total 
Held-to-maturity investments 

Short Term Deposits 

Total 
Available-for-sale assets 

Other Investments 
Total 
Loans and receivables: 

Trade and other receivables 

Total 

Carrying amount of financial assets 

Financial Liabilities 

Fair value through profit or loss 
Total 
Other financial liabilities 

Trade and Other Payables 
Total 

Carrying amount of financial liabilities 

$ $ 

1,011,306 

1,011,306 

3,992,147 3,666,958 
3,992,147 3,666,958 

113,737 117,654 
113,737 117,654 

4,105,884 4,795,918 

144,015 179,839 
144,015 179,839 

144,015 179,839 
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TRANSPORT WORKERS• UNION OF AUSTRALIA 
SA I NT BRANCH 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

Note 148: Financial Risk Management 

Potential financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, which comprises interest 
rate risk, foreign currency risk and price risk. 

Credit risk arises from the potential non-performance by counterparties of contract obligations to 
pay financial assets when they are due which could result in the Branch incurring a financial 
loss. The Branch manages credit risk by monitoring exposure to single debtors, groups of 
debtors and financial institutions holding cash, term deposits and local money market 
instruments. Only reputable financial institutions are utilised for cash and term deposits. 

The Branch does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single debtor or group of 
debtors. The following table details the trade and other receivables exposed to credit risk with 
aging analysis. The receivables that remain within the initial trade terms are considered to be of 
high credit quality. Receivables are considered past due when the debt has not been settled 
within the trade terms provided to the counterparty. These debtors have been assessed for 
impairment and are all within initial trade terms. 

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Branch might encounter difficulty settling its 
debts or otherwise meeting its obligations related to financial liabilities. The Branch manages 
this risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and ensuring that adequate short term cash balances 
are maintained to meet liabilities. All financial liabilities mature within 1 year and all financial 
assets, other than available for sale financial assets, mature within 1 year and will be available 
to meet these liabilities. 

Interest rate risk arises from a potential change in interest rates will affect future cash flows or 
the fair value of fixed rate financial instruments. The Branch does not have any material 
exposure to interest rate risk as financial assets are short term instruments in nature and the 
rate is fixed until maturity, and the Branch does not maintain any debt financial liabilities. Due to 
the Branches low exposure to this risk the sensitivity of fluctuations to this risk is immaterial. 

Foreign currency risk arises when movements in the foreign exchange rates of currencies in 
which the Branch holds financial instruments may result in the fair value or future cash flows of 
those instruments fluctuating. The Branch does not have any material exposure to foreign 
currency risk as it is does not transact or hold any financial instruments in foreign currencies. 

Due to the Branches low exposure to this risk the sensitivity of fluctuations to this risk is 
immaterial. 

Price risk arises when changes in market prices of traded investments or commodities, largely 
due to demand and supply factors, may result in the fair value or future cash flows of those 
instruments fluctuating. The Branch does not have any material exposure to price risk as it does 
not have any traded investments or commodities. Due to the Branches low exposure to this risk 
the sensitivity of fluctuations to this risk is immaterial. 
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TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF AUSTRALIA 
SA/ NT BRANCH 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

Note 15 Fair Value Measurement 

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and other investments are short term 
instruments in nature whose carrying amount is equivalent to fair value. 

The fair value of loans and receivables are categorised as a level 2 fair value using a 
discounted cash flow methodology and based on observable interest rates. The carrying 
amount approximates the fair value. 

The fair value of available for sale assets are categorised as a level 2 fair value using a 
combination of price and other relevant information of the underlying share of investments of the 
management funds as well as discounted cash flow methodology based on observable interest 
rates. The carrying amount approximates the fair value. 

No financial assets and financial liabilities are readily traded on organised markets in 
standardised form. 

Note 16 Recovery of Wages Activity 

The branch does not undertake recovery of wages activity from which it derives revenue. 

Note 17: Section 272 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

In accordance with the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the 
attention of members is drawn to the provisions of subsections (1) to (3) of section 272, which 
reads as follows: 

Information to be provided to members or General Manager: 

(1) A member of a reporting unit, or the General Manager, may apply to the reporting unit 
for specified prescribed information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available 
to the person making the application. 

(2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the 
manner in which, the information is to be made available. The period must not be less 
than 14 days after the application is given to the reporting unit. 

(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1 ). 
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t:air Work Commission 
Tribunal Serv~ce• ""d O'CMisation; 
GPO Box 1994 
MelbOI)rne VIC 3001 

Date: 6/04/2016 12:21 :25_PM 

Designated Officer's Certificate (FR2015/~86) 

~.~63 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 
Certificate for period "nd•~d 31 Decenibe• 2015 

21 March 2016 

I flayroond John Wyoa being the Bmnch Secrr:wry of the Transport Workers.' Union of Australia 
SA/NT Branch certify: 

lhot the documetitS lodged herew1tli ;;re eop11·~ of th~ tull report for the 1"ransport Workort' 
Union of Austral/a SA/NT Branrh l'or the period ended 31 Docomber 2015 referred to in 
; 258 of the Fa1r work (Reamered Organisations) Act :.1009; o11d 

• that tha full report Wtl5 1lrese11tod to a Committee of Mam1gement Meeting on 21 Morr!J 
1016, Th~ full report i~ ill~o <lVll'tl;,ble on the •ntcrnct for download nt t{._;y_y.tJlY.l!:is1llL!'.PJ1.l!l!,! 
iltld I$ <tVilili!IM in hard copy from 25 Chief St Brompton GA ~,QQ7; ond 

th;;>t tho full r~port WJS pre,ented to i1 COI111Hill~(J ur Milfl<lgernent Meeting 011 21 Marcil 
2016 ;, ,1ccordoncc with o.266(3] of the Fair Work (fleqistered Orgonfsoticns) Aa JU09 ;.Jnd 
Rule 49)>1 the Reporting Unit'' Rule,, 

(\__,=~ -/. /\1 

-- A i ' 
SlCr'liltuf-0:·:7:-:,g;;-.:;:;;:;::;:~ . ., ... , . . ,. , , ... , 
l<aymond John Wyatt 
ruJn~port Workers' Union of Australia SA/NT er~.Hitll S!~CrottHy 

Oatod: 21 M,lrth <016 
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Transport Worl<ers' Union of Austf<llia SA/NT l'lr.1nch 

Branch Committee of M~nagement 

OPERATING REPORT 

For the period end~d !i:1 December 2015 

The Br~nch Committee of Management presents its report on lhe Reporting Unit for the financial 

year ended 3l December 2015. 

Principal Activities 

The principal activities of the Branch during the reporting period were to provide industrial and 

organising services to the members consistent with the objects of the Branch and particularly the 

object of protecting and improving the interest of the members. 

The Branches principJI activities resulted in maintaining and improving the wages and conditions of 

employment of the membership, particularly for those members in collective enterprise agreements 

negotiated by the Branch. 

There were no significant changes In the nature of the Branch's principal activities during the 

reporting period. 

Significant cJJ~_!),&~_sJn financial affairs 

There were no signific;nt changes in the financial affairs of the Branch during the reporting period. 

Righ,t_otm_~_I!Jbers to r~slgn 

Memb~rs may resien from the Branch in accordance with rule 11, which reilds ~s follows; 

11. Resignation from membership 

(1) A Member may resign from Membership by notice in writing addressed and delivered to 

the Branch Secretary of the Branch in which the Member is enrolled. 

(2) A notice of r{:lsignation from Membership takes effect; 

(a) if the Member has ceased to be Eligible: 

(i) on the day on which the notice is received by the Union; 

(ii) on the clily >pC!ciFi0d in the notice; 
2 
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(b) in any other case: 

(I) at the end of 2 wccl<s after the notice is received by the Branch Secretary; 

or 

{ii) on the d~y specified in the notice; 

whichever is later. 

(3) Any Dues payable but not paid by a former Member, in relation to a period before the 

Member's resignation from the Union tool< effect, may be sued for and recovered in 

accordance with rule 81 as a debt due to the Union. 

(4) A notice delivered In occordance with sub-rule (l) is deemed to hi.lve been received by 

the Union when it was delivered. 

(5) A notice of resignation that has been received by the Union is not invalid only because it 

was not addressed and dalivcrcd in accordance with sub-rule (1). 

(6) A resignation from Membership is valid, even if it is not effected in accord• nee with this 

rule, if the Member is informed in writing by the Union that the resignation has been 

accepted. 

Transport Workers' Union of Austral I~ SA/NT Branch 

Qffl>el'$ & emplo)Lee~ who are superannu3tlon fund trustgc($} (include position details) or 

director of a comp::.ny that is a ~uecrannu:.tion fund tru$tee 

The following officers of the Brandl held preserved positions in the following entitles: 

Raymond Wyatt is an alternate director ofTWUSUPER. 

Number of members 

The number of persons who, at tl1e end of the reporting period, were recorded on the Registrar of 
Members of the Branch was 4678. 

3 
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The nL1mber of persons who were, at the e11d of the reporting period, employees of the Bronch was 
ll. 

Names of Committee of Management members and period p_ql!itlons_b_~_[c;!_c;l\l!inJLtJ:!_I! financial 

vear 

Tl1e persons who held office as members of the committee of Man~(lcment of the Branch during the 

reporting period are; 

• Bryan Mcintosh (President), 

• Michael Vogt (Vice-President) 

• Ray Wyatt (Secretary/Treasurer) 

• ian Smith (Assistant Secretary) 

• ian Gonsalves (Branch Trustee) 

• Edward Lawrie (Branch Trustee) 

• Matthew Spring (Committee Member) 

• Petl!!r Brnmmy (Committee Member) 

• Rornana Hutchinson (Committee Member) 

• Scott Concannon (Committee Member) 

• Daniel McNicol (Committee Member) 

• Jeremy Cwloszynski (Committee M7ber) 
. I 

• Frank Kesal< (Committee Member) L 
II. ·---- --

Signature of designaled offi~ ... -.1~~$ ......... ~.-.: •.•• -<= .................................................. .. 

Name and title of designated officer: Ray Wyatt- TWU SAINT Branch Secretary 

Dated: Tuesday: 21 March 2016 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
10TH~ MEMBERS OF TRANSPORT WORKERS UNION OF AUSTRALIA SA I NT BRANCH 

We hove <Jodi ted th¢ ;;ccompanyiog financial report of Tron5port Worker~ U~ion of Austr~lia SA I NT Or<Jnch, 
whtch comprises the Sl.<llern~nt of Financial Position as ill 31 D~'~mber 2015, the Statement of Prof1l 01 Loss 
and Other Comprehens1ve Income, Statement of Chanees in Equity and Co~l· Flow Staten•ent for the ye;,r then 
ended, Notes to l11e Financi;~l St;~tcments ond the Committee of Management's Statement. 

Committee of Management Responsibility for the Finam:iol Report 

The Comm1ttcc of Mnnagcmcnt <Jrc responsible for the preparation and fair pre~entation ol the finan,i~l 
report in ~ccordnnce wi:h Au~tr•li;m Accountir1g Stondords Jnd the requirem~nt> of the Reporting Guidelines 
ilr1d Part3 of Ch;;pler 8 of the Fair Work (Registered Orqanisotions} Act 2009 ond fot such internal control as 
111ey determine ore nece~>ary to enoble the preparation of the financial report that is free from material 
misstatement, WhP,tht~r ch.JP to iraud or turor 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our re~por1~i!)rlity 1s to expre$$ an oplliion on 111e f111,1nci<1l rr~port ba1ed on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with Australian Auditing St<~nd;11ds. These AUditing Standards require that we comply with 
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and p~rfor~", the audit to oilt<r~n 
reasonable assur'a/1te wi1Pthr'r tlw finill1tial report is free lrorn rn<ll~ri~l rniss;atement 

An Judit involves perform ins procedures to obtain oudit ~vidcnr;c <lbout the amount~ ~nd di~closures in the 
financial report The proccdtJtcr. selected depend on the auditor's judgement, ir1cludirig the ~s;e~mrent of the 
risks of materialniisstatement of the fin"nci•l repurt, wlrother du~ to fraud or error, In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor COr1Siders internal control nil evant to the Branch's prepar~non aod fair pr~scnt~tlan 
of the fin~nciol report in order to design audit procedures th:H ore •ppropria:e 111thr; mcumc.tnnces, but r1ot 
for the Ptlrpot.r. of cxpn~s~lng an oplnlon 011 the cttcctiv~n~!l~ of the ararH::h 1S interni11 controL An v.IJd!t ~lso 
mcluaes. ew1lui.lting the ~1ppropriuteness of accou,.,ting policies used .;and tho rcasor1ublerH~!.A!O of JCc.ounting 
eslimate:. made J,y the Committee of M~nJgemcnt, <Js well as evaluatrne the ovN<111 presentatiOii nf tlie 
fin,,n<:iol report 

W~ b~li~v~ tiNt. lite i1Udit evidenc~ we have obta,ned is sufficient and appropri~te to provide a bu:.is for our 
audit opinion, 

Matter$ Relating to the IJ/ectranic Prc$entction of the Audited Firrancial Report 

This a~rdit report relate~ to the nnanciiil report of the Transport Work~" Union of Au;lr<rli<l SA I NT Branch for 
the year ended :n December 201~. im;I\Jdii1G its presentation on th(~ Transport Workers Umon web site The 
National Co·lHllitte~ of Man<lgernent ~Jnd the Nat,onal Secretary of Transport workers Uo1011 of AIJr,tr"''" .1re 
responsible for th<i: integrity of the Transport workers Union web site.. This GJdit report r~fers only to thr1 
statements named obove for the SA I NT Brandl. ll does not provide <Jn opinion on any other infon,iltion tllilt 
rnav be hyper linkad to or from these statementt. Jf tJ<;0r~ of thi~ report t:~ro concerned with the 1nhorent risks 
Jl'1!:1r1(! from C'INtroriit d;'lti:l communkatior~s they are advised to refer to the h;;~rd copy of the 3uditcd fin;Jnci;)l 
report~ to confirm thC! inforrnoUon indudc>d in the iludttcd firh1riCi~ll r~port pr~~cl!led on the web Jite. 

',I·, 

''r •' 

~ 
,_ 
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INDEPENDENT AUOITOR'S REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF TRANSPORT WORKERS UNION OF AUSTRALIA SA/ NT BRANCH (CONT) 

Independence 

In conducting our olldlt, w~ 11avc complied wit11 the independence requirements of the Accoc.nting 
Professional and tthical Standards. 

Audit Declarations 

We have concluded that manugement's use of the going concern ba~is of account"'e in prepill'~tion of the 
findncldl slotemenl·~ is tlppropr,ate 

The auditor I$ an ilpproved auditor 1n ilCcordance with the requirements of the Ft1lr Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 1009, 15 a mernber of the Institute ofCI1art~red Arcountcnts in Au$lr~l,;, >n<l holds a 
current Publi' Practrt~ Certificate. 

Audit Opinion 

In our opinion the fiMi1Cial rQport present fairly,"' ~ll1n~teri<JI re"P"'I~, the f•nunciiil position ofTran5port 
workers Union of Austrnr.n SA) NT Branch as at 31 December lo-1 sand of it; fmancial pcrformnnce t111d 1ts 
cash flows lor the v~•.r then ~nded in accordance With Aust•·nfian AccountinR Stand~rds ond the rcquircr'l1cnts 
of the Reporting GUidelines o nd PJ rt 3 of Choptcr S of the Fair Work {Registered Organ/soc ton;) Act 2009 

·.·" ,., ' 

i '.,.!·.,. ' . 

Edwards Mt~r5hnll 
Ch~rtered Accountants 

Stephen Cam1lle1'1 
Pvrtncr 

Adcl;~iclc 

South Au5tr~liu 

()t:·Jted 
.• 

I''• 

.... 

I 
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Tr:mcport Workers' Union of Australia SAINT Bn:~nch 

Branch Commil:toCI of M~nagoment 

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT 

For the period ended 31 December 2015 

On 21 March 2016 the Branch Committee of Management of the Transport Workers Union 
of Australia SAINT Branch passed the following resolution in relation to tha general purpos0 
financisl report (GPRF) for the year endad 31 Oecamber 2015: 

The Branch Committee of Management declares that in its opinion; 

(a) the financial stati!lmont:; and notes comply with the Australian Accounting 
Standards; 

(b) the financial statements snd notes comply with the reporting guidelines of tho 
General Manager; 

(c) tha financial statements and notes give a true <~nd fair view of the financial 
performance, financial position and cash flows of the reporting unit for the 
financial year to which they relate; 

(d) there aro reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay 
ita debto as and when they become due and payable; 

(a) during tho finoncicl year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that 
year. 

(I) mastings of tho committee of monogomi!lnt wore held in accordance with 
tho rules of tha organisation including the rulos of a branch ooncernod; 
and 

(ii) tho financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in 
accordance with the rules of the organisation including the rules of a 
branch concerned: and 

(iii) the financial records of tho reporting unit have been kept and maintained 
in aooordanc~ with the RO Act: and 

(iv) whora the organisation consists of two or more reporting units, the 
financial record~ of the reporting unit have been kept, as far as 
practicable, in a consistent manner with each of the other reporli11g units 
of the organisation; and 

(v) where information has been sought in any request by a member of the 
reporting unit or General Manager duly made under section 272 of the RO 
Act has been provided to the member or General Manager: and 

(vi) where any order for inspection of financial records has been made by lhe 
Fair Work Commission under section 273 of the RO Act, !her<:> has be<:>n 
compliance. 

(f) No revenue has been derived from undertaking recovery of wages activity during 
the reponing period. 

This declaration is made in <~ccordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management 

7 
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Name and title of ces gnated officer R<>y Wyatt- TWU SAINT Brmnch Secretaty 

Dated: TLesday· 21 M~rch 2016 
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TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF AUSTRALIA 
SA I NT BRANCH 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

2015 
Notes $ 

Revenue 
Membership subscriptions 1,903,701 

Capitation fees 3A 
Levies 38 
Interest 3C 37,962 
Rental revenue 3D 49,316 

Other revenue 3E 755,327 
Other Income 2,746,306 

Grants and/or donations 3F 
Total other income 
Total income 2,746,306 

Exponsos 
Employee expenses 4A 1,241,537 
Capitation fees 46 348,711 
Affiliation fees 4C 34,311 
Administration expenses 40 475,242 
Grants or donations 4E 1,318 
Depreciation end amortisation 4F 66,036 
Legal costs 4G 67,658 
Auditors fees 13 16,310 
Other expenses 4H 

Total expenses 2.251 '123 

Profit (loes) for the year 495,183 

Other comprehensive income 
Items that will bs subsequently 
reclassified to profit or loss 

Gain (loss) on revaluation of other 
(130.416) investmenls 

Total comprehensive income for the 
364,767 ye11r 

The ~bove stotomont ohould bo rood in conjunction with tho nolo$. 

2014 
$ 

1.960,850 

50,992 
37,372 

289,287 
2,338,501 

2.338,501 

1.278,152 
355,041 

32,851 
504,579 

29,936 
65,476 

158,185 
16.421 

2.440,641 

(102,140) 

149,575 

47,435 
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TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF AUSTRALIA 
SA I NT BRANCH 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

Notes 
ASSE;TS 
Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 5A 
Trade and other receivables 58 
Other current sssets 5C 

Total current assets 

Non-Current Assets 
L.and and buildings 6A 
Plant and equipment 68 
Other 1nvestments 6C 

Total non-currrmt usets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Curront Li:Jbilitios 

Trade payables 7A 
Other payables 7B 
Employee provisions 8A 

Total current 1/tllbllities 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Employee provisions 8A 

Total non-current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Netasseb 

EQUITY 
Building Revaluation Reserve 9A 
Financial Asset Reserve 98 
Retained earnings 

Total equity 

Tl1a sbovG elatomont ohould bo rood in conjunction with tho nato a, 

2015 2014 
$ $ 

1,632,428 550,728 
113,737 117,654 

11,388 7,745 
1,757,553 676,128 

1,269,021 1,292,974 
94,874 123,728 

3,992,147 4,678,264 
5,356,042 6,094,966 

7,113.595 6,771,094 

121.337 157,846 
:12,678 21,993 

181,122 175,348 
325,137 261,770 

7,785 
7,785 

332,922 355,188 

6,780,673 6,415,906 

562,538 562,538 
(767,570) (637,154) 
6,985,705 5,853,368 

6,780,673 6.415,906 

10 
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TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF AUSTRALIA 
SA I NT BRANCH 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

Building Financial 
Revaluation As sot 

Rosorvo Reserve 
Netas $ $ 

Balance as at 1 January 2014 562,538 
Adjustment for errors 98 (786,729) 
Profit (loss) for the year 
Other comprehensive income for the 149,575 
year 
Closing balance as at 31 

562,538 (637,154) Deeember 2014 

Profit (loss) for the year 
Other comprehensive income for the 

(130,416) 
year 
Closing btllonco as at 31 562,538 (767,570) 
December 2015 

Tho ~bovo ototomont ohould bo rood in conjunction with tho notos. 

Rotnlnod 
earnings 

$ 
5,805,933 

786,729 
(102,140) 

6,490,522 

495,183 

6,985,705 

Total oquity 

$ 
6,368,471 

(1 02, 140) 

149,575 

6,415,906 

495,183 

(130,416) 

6,780,673 

11 
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TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF AUSTRALIA 
SA I NT BRANCH 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

Notes 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received 

Receipt~ from other reporting units JOB 
Interest 
Other 

Cash used 
Employees 
Suppliers 
Payment to other reporting units 108 

Not cush from (usod by) op11rating 
10A activitill$ 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Cash recGivod 

Proceeds from sale of plant and 
equipment 
Proceeds from realisation of other 
investments 

Cash used 
Purchase of plant and equipment 

Not cash from (used by) investing 
activltlos 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Not cash from (used by) financing 
actlvitios 
Not increase (decrease) In cash held 
Cash & cash Gquivalants at the 
beginning of the reporting period 
Cash & cash equivalontil'i at the end of 5A the reporting period 

The above stotomont !ihOUid be read in conjunction wllh tho notes. 

2015 2014 
$ $ 

39,921 149,679 
37,962 50,993 

2,673,024 2,043,799 

1,227,979 1,254,940 
623,331 697,897 
360,370 331,239 

539,227 (39,605) 

41,603 

555,702 287,776 

13,229 103,782 

542.473 225,597 

' ' 
0

ffi0 ~ ffi "'" .... ~,..,.-~--~ " " 

1,081,700 185,992 

550,728 364,736 

1.632.428 550,728 
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Index to the Notes of the Financial Statements 

Note 1 Summary of significant accounting policies 

Note 2 Events alter the reporting period 

Noto 3 Income 

Note 4 Expenses 

Noto 5 Current assets 

Note 6 Non-current assets 

Note 7 Current payabies 

Note 8 Provisions 

Note 9 8quity 

Note 1 0 Cash flow 

Note 11 Contingent liabilities. conlingent assets and commitments 

Nole 12 Related party disclosures 

Note 13 Remuneration of auditors 

Note 14 Financial instruments 

Note 15 Fair value measurements 

Note 16 Recovery of Wages Activity 

Note 17 Section 272 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 
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Note 1 Summary of significant accounting policies 

1.1 Basis of preparation of tho financial statements 

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements and have been 
prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations Issued 
by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that apply for the reporting period 
and the Fair Work (Registered Organlselion) Act 2009. For the purpose of preparing the 
general purpose financial statements, the Transport Workers' Union of SNNT Branch Is a 
not-for-profit entity. 

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance with 
the historical cost, except for certain assets and liabilities measured at fair value, as 
explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair 
values of the consideration given in exchange for assets. Except where stated, no 
allowance is made for the effect of changing prices on the results or the financial position. 
The financial statements are presented In Australian dollars. 

1.2 Comparative amounts 

When required by Accounting Standardc, comparative ligures have been adjusted to 
conform to chr:mgo~ in presentation for the current financial year. 

1.3 Significant accounting judgements and ostlmates 

The following accounting assumptions or estimates have bi!Jon identified that have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next reporting period. 

• Valuation of land and buildings 
• Valuation of other investments- Available for sale financial assets 

1.4 New Australian Accounting Standards 

Adop!lon of New Australian Accounting Standard requiromonts 

No accounting standard has been adopted earlier than the application date stated in the 
standard. 

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year. 

Future Austrollan Accounting Standards Requirements 

There are no new standards, amendments to standards or interpretatlo11s that were issued 
prior to the sign-off dale and art! applicable to the future reporting period that are expected 
to have a ruture rinancial impact on Transport Workers' Union of SNNT Branch. 

14 
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1.5 Revenue 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 

Revenue from subscriptions Is accounted for on an accrual basis and is recorded as 
revenue in the year to which it relates. Receivables are recognised at the nominal amounts 
due less any impairment allowance made when collectability of the debt is no longer 
probable. Collectablllty is reviewed at the end of the year. 

Donation Income Is recognised when it is received. 

Interest revenue is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. 

Rental revenue from operating lsases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term 
of the relevant leas0. 

1.6 Government grants 

Governm0nt grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the 
Transport Workers' Union of SA/NT Branch will comply with the conditions attaching to 
them and that the grants will be received. 

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods 
in which the Transport Workers' Union of SAINT Branch recognises as expenses the 
related costs for which the grants are Intended to compensate. Specifically, government 
grnnts whose primary condition is that the Transport Workers' Union of SA/NT Branch 
should purchase, construct otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as 
deferred revenue In the statement of nnancial position and transferred to profit or loss on 
a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets. 

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already 
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Transport Workers' 
Union of SA/NT Branch with no future ralated costs are recognised in profit or loss in the 
period in which they become receivable. 

1.7 Gains 

SoltJ of .llssets 

Gains and losses from disposal of assets are recognised when control of the asset has 
passed to the buyer. 

1.8 Capitation fees and levies 

Capitation fees and levies are recognised on an accrual basis and recorded as a 
revenue and/or expense in the year to which it relates. 

15 
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1.9 Employ(lo benefits 

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and 
salaries, annual leave, long service leave and termination ben0fits when it is probable that 
settlement will be required and they are capable of being measured reliably. 

Liabilities for short-term employee benefits and termination benefits which are expected to 
be settled within twelve months of the end or reporting period are measured at their 
nominal amounts. The nominal amount is calculated with regard to the rates expected to 
be paid on settlement of the llablllly. 

Other long-term employee benefits which are expected to be settled beyond twelve months 
are measured as the present value of the estimated futura cash outflows to be made by 
the reporting unit in respect of services provided by lllmployees up to reporting date. 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense 
when employees have rendered service entitling them to tho contributions. 

Provision is made for separation and rodundancy bene!it payments. Reporting Unit 
recognisas a provision for termination as part of a broader restructuring when it has 
developed a detailed formal plan for the terminations and has informed thoaa employees 
affected that It will carry out the terminations. 

1.10 Cash 

Cash Is recognised at Its nominal amount. Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on 
hand. deposits held at call with bank, other short-term highly liquid investments with 
original maturity of 3 months or lc:lss that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts 
are shown within short·term borrowings in currant liabilities on the consolidated st:'ltoment 
of financial position, 

1.11 Financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when lhe Branch becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the Instrument. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are Initially measured at fair value. Transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or Issue of financial assets and financial 
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial 
liabilities, as appropriate. on Initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attribulable to the 
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognised immediately in profit or loss. 
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1.12 Financialassets 

Financial as~ets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets at 
fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial 
assets and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose 
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way 
purchases or sales of financial assets ara recognised and derecognised upon trade date 
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that 
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in 
the marketplace. 

Fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets aro classified as at fair value through profit or loss when the financial 
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at fair value through profit or loss. 

A financial asset Is classified 11$ held for trading if: 
• it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or 
• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of ldentlfllld financial instruments that the 

reporting unit manages together and has a recent actual pattern of shorHerm profit­
taking; or 

• It Is a derivative that Is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument. 

A financial asset other than a financial assai held for trading may be designated as Ill! fair 
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition if: 
• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition 

inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or 
• the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, 

which Is mansged and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance 
with the reporting units documented risk management or investment strategy, and 
information abo~t tha grouping is provided internally on that basis; or 

• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives. and AASB 
139 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' permits the entire 
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at fair value through profit or 
loss. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any gains 
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss, The net gain or loss 
recognised In profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial 
asset and is included in the 'other gains and losses' liM item in the statement of 
comprehensive Income. 

Held-to-maturity investments 

Finsncial assats with fixed or dcterminabiG payments and fixed maturity datc:ls that the 
reporting unit haz the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held­
to-maturity investments. 1-Jeld-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective Interest method less any impairment. 
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Available-for-sale 

Investments classified as available-for-sale and are stated atfarr value. Gains and losses 
arising from changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in the financial asset revaluation reserve, with the exception of impairment 
losses, Interest calculated using the effective Interest method, and foreign exchange gains 
and losses on monetQry assets, which are recognised in profit or loss. Where the 
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss 
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or 
loss. 

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised In profit or loss when 
the reporting unit right to receive the dividends Is established. The fair value of avarlable­
for-sala monetary assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign 
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. The foreign 
exchange gains and losses that are recognised in profit or loss are determined based on 
the amortised cost of the monetary asset. Other foreign exchange gains and losses are 
recognised In other comprehensive income. 

Loan and recolvlilblos 

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments 
that are not quoted in an active market are classified as 'loans and receivables'. Loans 
and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less 
impairment. Interest Is recognised by applying the effectlva rnterest rate. except for short· 
tenm receivables when the recognition of interest would ba immaterial. 

Effective Interest method 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt 
Instrument end of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected 
life of tho financial asset, or, when appropriat<il, a shorter period, to th0 net ollrrying amount 
on initial recognition. 

Income is recognised on en effective interest rete basis except for debt instruments other 
than those financial assets that are recognised at fair value through profit or loss. 

Impairment of financial assets 

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for 
impairment at the end of each repo11ing period. Financial assets are considered to be 
impaired when there is objective evidence that. as a result of one or more events that 
occurred after the initial recognition of the Financial asset, tha estimated future cash flows 
of the investment have been affected, 
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For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are 
assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a 
collective basis. Objective evidence of impainment for a portfolio of receivables could 
include the reporting units past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the 
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 60 days, as 
well as observable changes In national or local economic conditions that correlate with 
default on receivables. 

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the Impairment loss 
recognised is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows, discounted at tM financial asset's original effective interest 
rate. 

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the 
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated 
future cash flows discounted at the current marl<et rate of return for a similar financial asset. 
Such impairment loss will nat be reversed in subsequent periods. 

The carrying amount of the financial asset Is reduced by the impairment loss directly for 
all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is 
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered 
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of 
amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance sccount. Changes in the 
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. 

When an available-iar·slllle financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains 
or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive Income are reclassified to profit 
or loss in the period. 

For financial assets measured at amorlised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of 
lhe impainment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 
occurring alter the impainment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss 
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment 
at the date the Impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would 
have been had the impairment not been recognised. 

In respect of available-for-MIG equity securities, impairment losses previously recognised 
in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in lair value 
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive Income and 
accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. In respect of available­
far-sale debt securities, impairment lasses are subsequently reversed through profit or loss 
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event 
occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss. 
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Doracognition of financial assets 

The reporting unit derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the 
cash flows from the asset expire, or when It transfers the financial asset and substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. The difference 
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and 
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other 
comprehensive income and accumulaled in equity is recognised in profit or loss. 

1.13 Fin:ancial Liobilities 

Financial liabilities are classified as either flnancialliabililies 'et fair value through profit or 
loss' or other financial liabilities. Financial liabilities are recognised and derecognlsed upon 
'trade date'. 

Fair valuo through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit or loss when the financial 
liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at fair value through profit or loss. 

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: 
• it has baon acquired principally for tho purpose of repurchosing it in the near term; or 
• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that U1e 

reporting unit manages togelher and has a recent actual pal tern or short-term profit­
laking; or 

• it Is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging Instrument. 

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at 
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition if: 
• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition 

inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or 
• the financial liability forms part of a group of financial sssets or financial liabilities or 

both, which is managed and its performance is ®Valuated on a fair value bosis, in 
accordance with the reporting units document<i!d risk management or investment 
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided intornslly on that basis; or 

• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives. and AA$8 
139 'Financial Instruments; Recognition and Measurement' permits the entire 
comblnad contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at fair value through profit or 
loss. 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value. with any gains 
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss 
recognised in prorit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is 
included in the 'other gains and losses' line Item in the statement of comprehensive 
income. 
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Other fimmcla/1/ab/litios 

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings and trade and other payables, are initially 
measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. 

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, with interest expanse recognised on an effective yield basis. 

Derecognltlon of financial fiabillt/es 

The reporting unit derecognlses financial liabilities when, and only when, the reporting 
units obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. "The difference between the 
carrying amounts of the financial liability deraoognised and the conciderotion paid and 
payable is recognised in profit or loss. 

1.14 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are not recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Position but are reported In the relevant notes. They may arise from uncertainty 
as to the existence of a liability or asset or represent an existing liability or asset in respect 
of which the amount cannot be reliably measured. Contingent assets are disclosed when 
settlement is probable but not virtually certain, and contingent liabilities are disclosed when 
settlement is greater than remota. 

1.15 Land, Building:;, Plant and Equipment 

Ass&t Recognition Threshold 

Purchases of land, buildings, plant and equipment are recognised initially at cost in the 
Statement of Financial Position. "The initial cost of an asset Includes an estimate of the 
cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. 

Revilluations-Land and Buildings 

Following Initial recognition at cost, land and buildings are carried at fair value less 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated Impairment losses. Revaluations 
are performed with sufficient frequency such that the carrying amount of assets do not 
differ materially from those that would be determined using fair values as at the reporting 
date. 

Revaluation adjustments are made on a class basis. Any revaluation increment Is credited 
to equity under the heading of asset revaluation reserve except to the extent that it 
reversed a previous revaluation decrement of the same asset class that was previously 
recognised in the surplus/deficit. Revaluation decrements for a class of assets are 
recognised directly ;n the profit or loss except to the extent tliat they reverse a previous 
revaluation increment for that class. Any accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation 
date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the asset is restated 
to the revalued amount. 
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Depreciation 

Depreciable property, plant and equipment assets are written-off to their estimated residual 
values over their estimated useful life using, in all cases, the straight line method of 
depreciation. Depreciation rates (uMfullives), residual values and methods are reviewed 
at each reporting date and necessary adjustments are recognised in the current, or current 
and future reporting periods, as appropriate. 

Depreciation retes applying to each class of depreciable asset are based on the following 
useful lives: 

Land & buildings 
Plant and equipment 

Derecognition 

2.50% 
4% to 33.3% 

An item of land, buildings, plant and equipment Is deracogni&ed upon disposal or when no 
future economic benefits are expected from Its ust!l or disposal, Any gain or Joss lllrising on 
the disposal or retirement of an Item or property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognised In the profit and loss. 

1.16 lmpnirmcmt for non-financial asso!$ 

All ossots me assessed for impairment at the end of each mporting period to the extent 
that there ia an impairment trigger. Where indications of impairment exist, the asset's 
recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment adjustment made if the asset's 
recoverable amount Is less than its carrying amount. 

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal 
and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to 
be derived from the asset. Where the future economic benefit of an assat is not primarily 
dependent on the asset's ability to generate future cash flows, and the asset would be 
replaced If the [reporting unit] were deprived of the asset, its value in use Is taken to be its 
depreciated replacement cost. 

22 



From: 61 8 83468580 _ P9ge: _25/38 -···-,--- - ··--
Date 6/04/2016 12:21 3~ PM_ 

TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF AUSTRALIA 
SA I NT BRANCH 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

1.17 Taxation 

Transport Workers' Union of SA/NT Branch is exempt from income tax under section 50.1 
of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 however still has obligation for Fringe Benefits 
Tax (FBT) and the Goods and Services Tax (GST). 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of GST except: 
• where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation 

Office; and 
• for receivables and payables. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included 
as part of receivables or payables. 

Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis. The GST component 
of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which Is recoverable from, or 
payable to, the Australian Taxation Office is classified within operating cash flows. 

1.18 Fair value monsuroment 

Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair 
value measurement is basad on the prssumption that thG trane<~ction to slllll tho asset or 
transfer tha liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for th(J asset or liability, or 
• In the absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset 

or liability 

TM principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by tho Branch. The 
fair value or an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or llabillty, assuming that market participants 
act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value moasuromont of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Branch uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufncienl data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 



From: 61 8 83468580 _ P9ge: _26/38 -···-,--- - ··--
Date 6/04/2016 12:21 3~ PM_ 

TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF AUSTRALIA 
SA I NT BRANCH 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE! YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on 
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

• levei1-Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities 

• Levei2-Valuation techniques for which the lowest laval input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

• Levei3-Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that Is significant to 
the fair value measurement Is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring 
basis, the (reporting unit] determines whether transfers have occurred between LGvels in 
the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on thi!> lowest lev()! input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as land and buildings 
and investment properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation. 
independence and whether professional standards are maintained. For the purpose of fair 
value disclosures. the [reporting unit] has determined classes of assets and liabilities on 
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the 
fair value hierarchy. 

Note 2 Events after the reporting period 

There were no events that occurred after 31 December 2015. and/or prior to the signing of the 
financial statements, that would affect the ongoing structure and financial activities of Transport 
Worker's Union of Australia SA/NT Branch. 
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Note 3 Income 

Noto 3A: Capitation ftos. 

Capitation fees 
Total capitation fees 

Note 38; Levies 

Levies 
Totollovios 

Note 3C: Interest 

Deposits 
Total interest 

Note 3D: Rental revenue 

Properties 
Other 
Total rental revenue 

Noto 3E: Other Revenue 

Other 
Totalothorrovonuo 

Note 3F: Grants or donations 

Grants 
Don;'ltions 
Total grants or donations 

2015 2014 
$ $ 

37,962 50,99~. 
37,962 50,992 

49,316 37,372 

49,316 37,372 

755,327 289,287 

755,327 289,287 
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Note 4 Expenses 

Note 4A: Employee expenses 

Holders of offio9; 
Wages and salarias 
Superannuation 
Leave ~md other entittaments 
Separation and redundanci~:~s 
Other employee expenses 

Employee expenses hold~~>rs of office 

Employees other than office holdors: 
Wages end salaries 
Superannuation 
Leave and other entitlements 
Separation and redundancies 
Other employee expenses 

Employoo exponsos omployeos other than offioo holders 
Total omployoe expenses 

Note 48: Capitation fees 

Transport Workers Union of Australia National Office 
Total capitation fees 

Note 4C: Affiliation fees 

Au~tralian Labor Party- SNNT Branches 
Total affiliation fees/subscriptions 

2015 2014 
s $ 

309,826 
60,416 
36,019 

406,261 

726,751 
103,513 

5,012 

835,276 
1,241,537 

348,711 
348,711 

301 '190 
58,378 
17,808 

377,376 

783,741 
111,631 

5,404 

900,776 
1,278,152 

355,Q41 
355,041 

34,311 32,851 
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Note 40: Administration expenses 

Consideration to employers for payroll deductions 
Compulsory levies: 
·Transport Workers Union of Australia National Office IR Levy 
Fees/allowances • meeting and conferences 
Conference and meeting expenses 
Property expenses 
Office expenses 
Information communications technology 
Other 

Total administration expense 

Note 4E; Grants or donations 

Grants 
Donations 

Total paid that ware 51,000 or less 
Total paid that exceeded $1,000 

Total grants or donatiOn$ 

Note 4F: Depreciation and amortisation 

Depreciation 
Land & buildings 
Property, plant and equipment 

Total depreciation 
Total depreciation and amortisation 

Note 4G: Legal costs 

Litigation 
Other legal matters 
Total legal costs 

Note 4H: Other expenses 

Penalties -via RO Act or RO Regulations 
Total other expenses 

2015 
$ 

1,525 

18,836 
6,030 

48,632 
34,500 

162,744 
11,985 

190,990 

475,242 

1,318 

1,318 

23,953 
42,063 
66,036 
66,036 

67,658 

67,658 

2014 
$ 

1,562 

8,732 
75,525 
42,610 

159,165 
29,989 

186,996 

504,579 

1,436 
28,500 
29,936 

23,967 
41,509 
65,476 
65,476 

158,185 

158,185 
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2015 2014 

Note 5 Current Assets 

Note SA: Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash at bank 
Cash on hand 
Short tarrn deposits 
Other 
Total cash and cash oquivalents 

Note SB: Tmdo and Other Reoeivablos 

Roceivables from other reporting unit 
Transpor1 Workers Union of Australia 

Total receivables from other reporting unit 

L0ss provision for doubtful dobt$ 

Total provision for doubtful debts 
Receivable from other n11porting unit (not) 

Other receivables: 
GST receivable from the Australian 
Taxation Office 
Other trade receivobloo 

Total other receivables 
Total trndo and other receivables (net) 

Note 5C: Other Current Assets 

Prepaid Expenses 
Movie Tickets for resale on hand 
Total othor current assGts 

$ $ 

1.631.578 
850 

1.632.428 

101 
101 

101 

5,604 

108,032 
1'13.636 
113,737 

9,902 
1,486 

11 ,388 

549,878 
850 

550,728 

13,503 

104,151 
1'17,654 
117,654 

7.588 
157 

7,745 
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2015 2014 
$ $ 

Note 6 Non-current Assets 

Noto 6A: Land and buildings 

Land and buildings: 
fair value 
accumulated depreciation 

Total land and buildings 

1.494,475 
225.454 

1,269,021 

Reconciliation of the Opening and Closing 811/ancos of Land rmd Buildings 

Net book value 1 January 
Additions by purchase 
Depreciation expense 
Net book value 31 O~cember 

1,292,974 

23,953 
1,269,021 

1,494.475 
201,501 

1,292,974 

1,341,179 

23,967 
1,292,974 

Fair value of the properties waa determined by using market comparable method. This means 
that valuations performed by the valuer are based on active market prices, significantly adjusted 
for dffferenoe In the nature, location or condition of the specific property as at the date of 
revaluation in 2009. Tha properties' fair values were based on valuations performed by an 
accredited Independent valuer. 

Note 68: Plant and equipment 

Plent end equipment: 
sl co~l 
accumulated depreciation 

Total plant and equipment 

302,647 
207,773 

94,874 

Roconcil/ntlon of the Opening and Closing Balances of Plant and Equipment 

Net book value 1 January 
Additions by purchase 
Depreciation expense 
Net book value 31 December 

Note GC: Other Investments 

Deposits 
Available for sale financial assets- managed funds 
Total othor invostrnonts 

123,728 
13,229 
42,083 
94,874 

3,992,147 
3,992,147 

328,761 
205,D33 
123,728 

-~3 .. Q59 
103,781 
41,509 

123,728 

1,011,306 
3,666,9~-
4,678,264 
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Note 7 Current Liabilities 

Note 7 A; Trade payables 

Trade creditors and accruals 
Operating lease rentals 
Subtotal trade creditors 

Paynbles to other reporting units 
Transport Worker Union of Australia 

Subtotal payablcs to other reporting units 

2015 2014 
$ $ 

86,823 157.846 

86,823 157,846 

34,514 
34,514 

Total trade payables 121,337 157,846 

Settlement is usually made within 30 days. 

Note 7B: Other payablos 

Consideration to employers for payroll deductions 
Legal costs 
Prepayments received/unearned revenue 
Other 
Total other payables 

Total other payable::;; are expected to be settled in: 
No mora than 12 monthl> 
More than 12 months 

Total olher payables expected to be settled 

20,259 20,082 
2,419 1,911 

22,678 21,993 

22,678 21,993 

22,678 21,993 
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2015 
$ 

Note 8 Provisions 

Note SA: EmployeQ Provisions 

Office Holders: 
Annual leave 38,041 

Long service leave 74,924 
Separations and redundancies 
Other 

Employee provisions-office holders 112,965 

Employeo:s other than office holders: 
Annual leave 44,595 

Long servicaleave 31,347 
Separations and redundancies 
Other 

Emp/oyea provisions-employees other than office holders 75,942 
Total employoo provisions 1SS,907 

Current 181,122 
Non-Current 7,786 
Total employee provisions 188,907 

Note 9 Equity 

Note 9A: Property Revaluation Reserve 

Balance as at start cf year 562,538 
Transferred to resarve 
Transferred out of reserve 

Total property revaluation reserve 562,538 

Note 98: Fimmcial Asset Rov~luation Reserve 

Bai~Z~nce as at start of yenr (637.154) 
Adjustment for errors (i) 
Transferred to reserve (130,416) 
Transferred out of reserve 

Total financial assQt revaluation reserve (767,570) 

2014 
$ 

47,502 
77,928 

125,430 

34.429 
15,490 

49,919 
175,348 

175,348 

176,348 

562.538 

662,538 

(786,729) 
149,575 

(637, 154} 

(i): Th(!) financial asset reserve was not recognised in previous financi:'ll years on available 
for sale financial assets and revaluations W(!)ra taken directly into retained earnings. 
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2015 2014 

Note 10 Cash Flow 

Nota 1 OA: Cash Flow Reconciliation 

Reconciliation of profit/(loss} to not CQ$h from opGrating activitio11: 
Profit/(loss) for tho year 

Adjustments for non-cash itoms 
Depreciation/amortisation 

Changes in assetslliabilities 
(lncrease)/decrease in trade and other receivables 
(lncrease)/decrease in prepayments 
Increase/( decrease) In trade payables 
Increase/( decrease) in other payables 
Increase/( decrease) In employee provisions 
Not climh from (usod by) opor:~tlng activities 

Note 108: Cash flow information 

Cash inflows 
-Transport Workers Union of Australia National Office 
Total cash Inflows 

Cash outflows 
-Transport Workers Union of Australia National Office 
Total cash outflows 

$ $ 

495,183 

66,o36 

3,917 
(3,643) 

(36,509) 
684 

13,559 
539,226 

39,921 
39,921 

360,370 
360,370 

102,140 

65,476 

(23,713) 
36,998 
30,870 

(70,309) 
23,212 

(39,605) 

149,679 
149,679 

331,239 
331,239 

Note 11 Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments 

There are no contingent liabilities, contingent assets or commitments as at31 December 2015. 
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2015 2014 
$ $ 

Note 12 Related Party Disclosures 

Note 12A; Related Party Transactions for tho Raporting Period 

Transactions with the Transport Workers Union of Australia National Office are on normal 
commercial and conditions no more favourable than to other partiea. 
Expanses incurred from the National Office are disclosed in Notes 4B and 4D. 
Cash Inflows and outflows with the National Office are disclosed in Note 10 (b). 
Balancss with Transport Workers Union of Australia National Office are disclosed in Note 56 
and Note 7A. 

Note 126: Key Management Personnel Remuneration for the Reporting Period 

Short-term employee benefits 
Salary (including annual leave talur:n) 
Annual leave accrued 
Porformanco bonus 

Total short-term employee benefits 

Post-employment benefits; 
Superannuation 

Total post·employmant banefits 

Other long-term bGnofits: 
Long-service IC:lave accrued 

Total other long-term benoflts 

Termination benefits 
Tot:~l 

395,062 
27.185 

383,086 
26,696 

·~-'-42"'2'-",2'-4"'-7 __ 4_09 .. 782 

76,268 73,765 

8,834 6,672 
8,834 8,672 

507,349 492,219 

There are no other transactions with key management personnel or their close family mmbers. 

Note 13 Remuneration of Auditors 

Value of tho sorvic:es provided 
Financial statement audit services 
Other services 

Total remuneration of auditors 

11,700 10,000 
4,610 6,421 

. ...:.16::..:;.3:::.:1.::..0 __ 1:..;;;_6.421 
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Note 14 Financial Instruments 

Note 14A; Categories of Financial Instruments 

Financial Assets 

Fair value through profit or loss 

Total 
Held-to-maturity investments 

Short Term Deposits 
Total 
Available-for-sale assets 

Other Investments 
Total 
Loans and receivables: 

Trade and other receivables 
Total 

Carrying amount of financial assets 

Financial Liabilities 

Fair value through proflt or loss 
Total 
Other financial liabilities 

Trado and Other Payables 
Total 

Carrying amount of fimmcla//labilitios 

2015 2014 
$ $ 

1,011,306 
1,011,306 

3,992,147 3,666,958 
3,992.147 3,666,958 

113,737 117,654 
113,737 117,654 

4,105,884 4,795,918 

144,015 179,839 
__ J.~~:_Q}:_::5 _ _:_:_17_::9.c::, 8_::39::... 

144,015 179,839 
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Nolo148: Financial Risk Management 

Potential financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, which comprises interest 
rate risk, foreign currency risk and price risk. 

Credit risk arises from the potential non-performance by counterpartles of contract obligations to 
pay financial assets when they are due which could result in the Branch incurring a financial 
loss. The Branch manages credit risk by monitoring exposure to single debtors, groups of 
debtors and financial institutions holding cash, term deposits and local money m:~rket 
instruments. Only reputable financial institutions are utilised for cash and term deposits. 

The Branch does not have any material credit risk 0xpo~ure to any single debtor or group of 
debtors. The following table details the trade and other receivables exposed to credit risk with 
aging analysis. The receivables that remain within the initial trade terms are considered to be of 
high credit quality. Receivables are considered past due when the debt has not been settled 
within the trade terms provided to the counterparty. These debtors have been assessed for 
impairment and ara all within initial trade terms. 

Liquidity risk :uises from tna possibility that the Brench might encounter difficulty ::et11ing its 
debts or otherwise meeting its obligations rol1ltod to finMcialliabilitles. The Branch manages 
this risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and ensuring thl!lt adequate short term cash balances 
are maintained to meet liabilities. All financial liabilities mature within 1 year and all financial 
assets, other than available for sale financial assets, mature within 1 year and will be available 
to meet these liabilities. 

Interest rate risk arises frcm a potential change in interest rates will affect future cash flows or 
the fair value of fixed rate financial instruments. The Elranch does not have any material 
exposure to interest rate r1sk as financial assets are short term instruments in nature and the 
rat<'l is fixed until maturity, and the Branch does not milintain any debt financial liabilities. Due to 
the Brllnchos low exposure to this risk the sensitivity of fluctuations to this ri:;;k is immaterial. 

Foreign currency ri5k arises when movements in the foreign exchange rates or c:urrf:!ncies in 
which the Branch holds financial instruments may result in the fair value or future cash nows of 
those instruments fiuctuating. The Branch does not have any material exposure to foreign 
currency risk as It is does not transact or hold any financial instruments in foreign currencies. 

Due to !he Branches low exposure to this risk the sensitivity of fluctuations to this risk is 
immaterial. 

Price risk arises when changes in market prices of traded investments or commodities, largely 
due to demand and supply factors. may result in the fair value or future cash flows of those 
Instruments fluctuating. The Branch does not have any material exposure to price risk as It does 
not have any traded Investments or commodities. Due to the Branches low exposure to this risk 
the sensitivity of fluctuations to this risk is Immaterial. 
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Note 15 Fair Value Measurement 

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and other Investments are short term 
instruments in nature whose carrying amount is equivalent to fair value. 

The fair value of loans and receivables are categorised as a level 2 fair value using a 
discounted cash now methodology and based on observable interest rates. The canrying 
amount approximates the fair value. 

The fair value of available for sale assets are categorised as a level 2 fair value using a 
combination of price and other relevant information of tha underlying share of investments of the 
management funds as well as discounted cash flew methodology based on observable interest 
rates. The carrying amount approximates the fair value. 

No financial a!\sets and financial liabilities are readily traded on organised markets in 
standardised form. 

Note 16 Recovery of Wages Activity 

Tha branch does not undertake recovery of wages activity from which it derives revenue. 

Note 17: Section 272 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

In accordanca with the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the 
attention of members is drawn to the provisions of subsections (1) to {3) of section 272, which 
raads as follows: 

Information to be provided to members or General Manager: 

{1) A member of a reporting unit, or the General Manager, may apply to the reporting unit 
for specified prescribed Information In relation to the reporting unit to be made available 
to the person making the application. 

(2) The application must be in writing and must specify the pariod within which, and the 
manner In which, :he information is to ba made avail:i!ble. The period must not be less 
than 14 days after the application is given to the reporting unit. 

(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1 ). 
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11 Exhibition Street 
Melbourne   VIC   3000 

GPO Box 1994 
Melbourne   VIC   3001 

 

Telephone : (03) 8661 7777 

Email : orgs@fwc.gov.au  

Internet : www.fwc.gov.au 

 

13 January 2016 

Mr Ray Wyatt 

Secretary 

Transport Workers' Union of Australia-South Australian/Northern Territory Branch 

Sent via email: ray.wyatt@twusant.com.au 

Dear Mr Wyatt, 

Re:  Lodgement of Financial Report - [FR2015/386] 
Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act)  

 
The financial year of the Transport Workers' Union of Australia-South Australian/Northern Territory Branch 
(the reporting unit) ended on 31 December 2015. 

This is a courtesy letter to remind you of the obligation to prepare and lodge the financial report for the 
reporting unit by the due date under s.268 of the RO Act, namely 15 July 2016 (being the expiry date of 6 
months and 14 days from the end of the financial year). 

The RO Act sets out a particular chronological order in which financial documents and statements must be 
prepared, audited, provided to members and presented to a meeting.  For your assistance, the attached 
Timeline/Planner summarises these requirements. 

Fact sheets and guidance notes in relation to financial reporting under the RO Act are provided on the Fair 
Work Commission website.  Further, the General Manager’s updated Reporting Guidelines that apply to all 
financial reports prepared on or after 30 June 2014 are also available on the website supported by a 
webinar presentation. 

The Fair Work Commission has developed a model set of financial statements.  It is not obligatory to use 
this model but it is a useful resource to ensure compliance with the RO Act, the Reporting Guidelines and 
the Australian Accounting Standards.  The model statement and other resources can be accessed through 
our website under Financial Reporting in the Compliance and Governance section.  

I request that the financial report and any statement of loans, grants or donations made during the financial 
year (statement must be lodged within 90 days of end of financial year) be emailed, rather than posted, to 
orgs@fwc.gov.au.  A sample statement of loans, grants or donations is available at sample documents.   

It should be noted that s.268 is a civil penalty provision.  Failure to lodge a financial report may result 
in legal proceedings being issued with the possibility of a pecuniary penalty (up to $51,000 for a body 
corporate and $10,200 for an individual per contravention) being imposed upon an officer whose conduct 
led to the contravention and/or your organisation.   

Should you wish to seek any clarification in relation to the above, please contact me on (03) 8656 4699 or 
via email at Sam.Gallichio@fwc.gov.au. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 
Sam Gallichio 
Adviser 
Regulatory Compliance Branch 



 

 

TIMELINE/ PLANNER 

 

Financial reporting period ending: /       /   

    

Prepare financial statements and Operating Report. 
   

 

   

(a) A Committee of Management Meeting must 
consider the financial statements, and if satisfied, 
pass a resolution declaring the various matters 
required to be included in the Committee of 
Management Statement. 

(b) A 
#
designated officer must sign the Statement 

which must then be forwarded to the auditor for 
consideration as part of the General Purpose 
Financial Report (GPFR). 

/       / 

  

As soon as practicable after end of financial 
year 

 

 

 

  

Auditor's Report prepared and signed and given to 
the Reporting Unit - s257 

/       / 

 Within a reasonable time of having received 
the GPFR 

(NB: Auditor’s report must be dated on or 
after date of Committee of Management 
Statement 

 

    

Provide full report free of charge to members – s265 

 The full report includes: 

 the General Purpose Financial Report (which 
includes the Committee of Management 
Statement); 

 the Auditor’s Report; and 

 the Operating Report. 

/      / 

 (a) if the report is to be presented to a General 

Meeting (which must be held within 6 months 

after the end of the financial year), the report 

must be provided to members 21 days before 

the General Meeting, 

                         or 

(b) in any other case including where the  report 

is presented to a Committee of Management 

meeting*, the report must be provided to 

members within 5 months of end of financial 

year. 

 

  

Present full report to:    

Within 6 months of end of financial year 
(a) General Meeting of Members - s266 (1),(2); OR /       /  

(b) where the rules of organisation or branch allow* - 
a Committee of Management meeting - s266 (3) /       / 

 

Within 6 months of end of financial year 
 

  

Lodge full report with the Fair Work Commission, 
together with the #Designated Officer’s certificate++ 
– s268 

/       / 

 

Within 14 days of meeting 

 

 

*  the full report may only be presented to a committee of management meeting if the rules of the reporting unit provide that a 

percentage of members (not exceeding 5%) are able to call a general meeting to consider the full report. 

#  The Committee of Management Statement  and the Designated Officer’s certificate must be signed by the Secretary or another 

officer who is an elected official and who is authorised under the rules (or by resolution of the organisation) to sign the 

statement or certificate – s243. 

++ The Designated Officer’s certificate must state that the documents lodged are copies of the documents provided to members and 

presented to a meeting in accordance with s266 – dates of such events must be included in the certificate. The certificate cannot 

be signed by a non-elected official. 

 
 


